“Earth Negotiations Bulletin

A Reporting Servicefor Environment and Devel opment Negotiations

Vol. 15 No. 25

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (1ISD) Friday, 10 September 1999

POPSINC-3HIGHLIGHTS
THURSDAY, 9 SEPTEMBER 1999

Onthefourth day of INC-3, delegates met in amorning Plenary
session to hear reports from the LDG, the contact group on
measuresto reduce or eliminate POPs rel eases, the Implementation
Group and the Negotiation Group. In the afternoon, the Implemen-
tation Group discussed EU and Canadian submissions on technical
assistance and the Negotiation Group discussed procedure and
criteriafor adding new chemicals and information exchange. The
contact group on measuresto reduce or eliminate POPs releases
met throughout the day and a contact group on byproductsmetin
an evening session.

PLENARY

LDG Chair Patrick Szell (UK) reported that the group covered
the standard procedural articles and addressed adoption and
amendment of annexes. He presented three options for amending
annexes and explained that the opt-out and opt-in optionsallow
countriestimefor national parliamentary scrutiny beforean
amendment entersinto force, while amendments enter into force
automatically after a specified period under the consensus and
automaticity procedure. He stated that all three options are not
mutually exclusive and can be used together.

Contact group Chair Charles Auer (US) reported on the group’s
progress. He highlighted textual changes, including substituting the
option “take the legal measures necessary to eliminate” for “take
effective measuresto eliminate,” referencing exemptions as
“general exemptions” and insertion of language prohibiting export
or import of banned chemicals except for environmentally sound
destruction/disposal . He said the group addressed eight of the
chemicals and placed them into the annex on elimination, but that
work on DDT and PCBs and a public health exemption remained
outstanding. Of the eight chemical s placed in the annex, aldrin,
endrin and toxaphene did not have specific exemptionsidentified,
while HCB, chlordane, dieldrin, heptachlor and mirex had country-
specific exemptions. A date of expiry wasonly identified for two
uses of HCB. The group identified aneed for countriesto deter-
mine specific exemptions before INC-3 and aneed for capacity
building in banning chemicalsdomestically. NIGERIA and IRAN
identified possibleloopholesin the listed general exemptions.
NIGERIA, on behalf of the African Group, stressed maintaining
language on technical and financial assistance.

Implementation Group Chair Maria Cristina Cardenas Fischer
(Colombia) reported that the group held general discussionson
technical assistance, focusing on technical assistance activitiesand
the eligibility and mechanism for the assistance. The group
addressed the article’s structure and favored a short, non-exhaus-
tiveformula. The group emphasi zed enhanced coordination among
donorsand recipients.

Chair John Buccini (Canada) reported that the Negotiation
Group discussed the draft article on procedure and criteriafor iden-
tifying additional POPs, but did not agree on amanner in which to
forward thetext to the LDG. The EU reminded delegates of its
proposal on procedure with possible decisionsto betaken at the
diplomatic conference and by the COP, and promised the EU would
produce aproposal for the article.

NEGOTIATION GROUP

The Negotiation Group continued discussions on how to
forward the article on procedure and criteriato theLDG. The EU
suggested the LDG look at what elements could be addressed in an
article, in an annex and outside the body of the convention, either in
adecision taken by the diplomatic conference or by the COP.
NORWAY stressed that adiplomatic conference decision could
determine procedure for the interim period, asin the case of the
Rotterdam Convention.The US said addressing interim measures
needed further consideration.

Stating that the procedureisacritical policy issueand that the
key elements should be reflected in the convention itself,
AUSTRALIA, with CANADA, felt uncomfortablegivingthe LDG
the mandate to contemplateincorporation of the procedure. TheUS
said the mandate was vague, requested that guidance on inclusion
into the convention and annexesbe givento theLDG and identified
key elementsfor inclusionin the convention. The EU, with
NORWAY, suggested the LDG look at precedentsin other arrange-
mentsin terms of what elementsare usually contained in articles,
annexes or decisions by the diplomatic conference or the COP.
Buccini, supported by the US, proposed the LDG look at key
elements within the convention'stext and consider placement of
other elements.

To the criteriaon the proposed reasonsfor concern/adverse
effects, NORWAY, preferred use of adverse effects stating that
either: toxicity or ecotoxicity data; or acomparison of toxicity or
ecotoxicity dataor other information deemed relevant by the nomi-
nating party be provided. The US, CANADA and AUSTRALIA
opposed, while the EU opposed obligatory comparisons. Buccini
said a contact group would address this. Regarding the annex on
socioeconomic considerations, COLOMBIA, on behalf of
GRULAC, proposed that referencesto costs of risk reduction
control measures and alternatives be modified to “ environmental
and health costs.” ICELAND proposed "costs, including environ-
mental and health costs." Delegates agreed.

Buccini suggested that the annexes on screening criteria, infor-
mation requirementsfor the risk profile and socioeconomic consid-
erations be sent to the L DG, with the exception of thetoxicity
provision. Delegates agreed. The EU expressed concern over
caling thetext adraft article. ICELAND suggested sending the
draft text on procedureto the LDG for legal scrutiny, and removing
the heading "article." The US said that the transmission of the EU's

Thisissue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Richard Campbell <richcam@hotmail.com>, Vaerie Colas <vcolas@iisd.org>,
Lauralvers <laurai @iisd.org>, Violette Lacloche LL.M <vlacloche@hotmail.com> and Leila Mead <leila@interport.net>.The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D.
<pam@iisd.org>andtheManaging Editor isLangston James*“ Kimo” Goree <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital engineering by Andrei Henry <ahenry@iisd.ca>. Frenchtranslation
by Mongi Gadhoum <mongi.gadhoum@enb.intl.tn>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are The Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada
(through CIDA), the United States (through USAID), the Swiss Agency for Environment, Forests and L andscape, and the United Kingdom Department for International
Development (DFID). General support for the Bulletin during 1999 is provided by the German Federal Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry
of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Government of Australia, the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the European Community (DG- X1), the Ministries of
Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of Norway, the Ministry of Foreign Affairsand Ministry of Environment
of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Environment Facility (GEF) and the Ministry for the
Environment in Iceland. Specific funding for coverage of this meeting has been provided by the UNEP Chemicals Unit. The Bulletin can be contacted by e-mail at
<enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212- 644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. I1SD can be contacted by e-mail at <info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor,
Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y 4, Canada. The opinions expressed in the Earth Negotiations Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11SD
and other funders. Excerpts from the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only and only with appropriate academic citation. For
permission to use this material in commercia publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electronic versions are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the
LinkagesWWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages. The satelliteimage was taken above Geneva©1999 The Living Earth, Inc., http://livingearth.com. For information




Friday, 10 September 1999

Val. 15 No. 25 Page 2

proposal to the LDG should not set aprecedent. The EU agreed on
forwarding the text on the condition that the EU’ s proposed article
beforwarded aswell. Thetext wasforwarded to the LDG and the
EU'stext will be discussed in the Negotiation Group beforetrans-
missiontothe LDG,

Ontheissue of preventing newly developed chemicals, the EU
proposed text under the article on measuresto reduce or eliminate
releases, stating each party shall take necessary measuresto
prevent newly devel oped chemicalsthat exhibit POPs characteris-
ticsfrom being produced, made commercially available or used.
CANADA presented two options: appropriate measuresto identify
and prevent rel eases in accordance with national laws; and consid-
eration of criteriaand proceduresfor new or newly developed
chemicalswithin the parties national regulatory and assessment
schemes. AUSTRALIA supported the second option, but without
"new or newly developed.” POLAND requested reference to
criteriawhich apply to thetwelveinitial POPs. JAMAICA
suggested replacing devel oped with discovered chemicals. Buccini
recommended that the EU chair a contact group to discussthe
suggested reformul ations and devel op anew proposal.

Regarding the article on information exchange, SOUTH
AFRICA, CANADA and the US preferred that information be
exchanged in amanner consistent with national laws. Opposing,
IRAN and Y EMEN supported language stating that information be
exchanged in atransparent and non-discriminatory manner.
CANADA proposed alist of information relevant to cost-effective
alternatives, including: development and use of best availabletech-
niques, development and use of alternatives; and eval uation of
risksthat such alternatives pose to human health and the environ-
ment. To thislist, the GAMBIA supported adding indigenous prac-
tices. IRAN opposed aprovision on confidential information.
JAPAN supported itsretention, citing Intellectual Property Rights
lawson newly developed chemicals. IRAN supported provisions
on information exchange through the Secretariat and the Secre-
tariat acting as a clearing-house mechanism (CHM) for other rele-
vant information. Y EMEN expressed concern that the Secretariat
wasthe only point through which information could be exchanged.
The US suggested a provision stating that parties"may" exchange
information through the Secretariat instead of "shall.”

Contact Group Chair Charles Auer reported that the group had
fulfilled theterms of its mandate. He said DDT and PCBsremain
bracketed in both annexes on prohibitionsand restrictions, and that
public health emergency needed further consideration. Buccini
announced that Paul Whylie (Jamaica) would chair acontact group
to discuss byproducts, mandating the group to devel op text
reflecting an action-plan based approach.

IMPLEMENTATION GROUP

The Implementation Group considered EU proposed text for
thearticle on technical assistance. Thetext callsfor: international
cooperation; assessment of infrastructure and capacity at thelocal
and national levels; and promotion of five capacity building areas.
MICRONESIA opposed specification of capacity building areas
and, asking for detailson the“who” and “how,” emphasized the
need for guidance on how to coordinate donors. URUGUAY,
supported by ARGENTINA, said the text on capacity building
areas listed were more limited than those agreed upon at INC-2.
LESOTHO, supported by ARGENTINA and ANGOLA, called for
assessments at the regional and subregional levels. NIGER urged
countriesto continue support for initial work oninventoriesin
developing countries. IRAN, supported by NIGER and ANGOLA,
called for reference to assistance for POPs destruction technol ogy.
INDIA supported anindicative list for capacity building areasand
suggested additional areas, inter alia: sending expertsfor problem
solving; technology for new products; conduct of studies; and prep-
aration of guidance documents. LESOTHO expressed concern that
thetext overlooked technology transfer, rehabilitation of contami-
nated areas and formulation of national implementation plans.
CANADA opposed detailing every capacity building need, stating
that “ action necessary to implement the Convention” coversall

aspects of implementation. ECUADOR said the article should
detail amechanism for identifying donors and recipients. The

SEY CHEL LES said the procedure for receiving assistance should
bedetailed. GHANA called for reference to acoordinating body at
the national level. IRAN remarked that the EU proposal lacked
strong obligations. EGY PT emphasi zed that means of implementa-
tion must be discussed.

Delegates next considered a Canadian proposal onaCHM on
technical assistance. ICEL AND emphasized the importance of
having information on supply and demand of technical assistance
and the value of the CHM function. TANZANIA noted the
proposal could allow for both information exchange and technical
assistance. AUSTRALIA agreed with the Canadian proposal’s
request that the Secretariat examine past CHM experiencesin
terms of demand and supply coordination for technical assistance
and report back at INC-4. LESOTHO queried the success of CHM
and, in response, the FAO highlighted amechanism to coordinate
assistance for integrated pest management. The US underscored
coordination and streamlining of activities. The EU stressed
connecting financing sources with needs and information.
MICRONESIA envisioned aone-stop facility for technical assis-
tance and, with VENEZUELA, stressed the article must address
more than just information provision. GREENPEACE INTERNA-
TIONAL called for enhanced avail ability of technical assistanceto
meet specificimplementation demands. He cautioned against
assuming that enough resources exist and that aCHM will bethe
only additional cost. PAKISTAN suggested pooling donor funds
into the GEF under a POPs elimination fund. The GEF said the
global nature of POPs brought them under its mandate.

Chair Cardenas requested firm proposals on what should be
included in the article on technical assistance, building onthe EU
text. EGY PT stressed technical assistanceto build landfillsand
incinerators to destroy POPs stockpiles, supported devel opment of
training and awareness programmes at the subregional levelsand
called for atransparent mechanism for requesting technical assis-
tance. NIGER underscored the need for assured assistancein
follow-up to inventories. PERU requested articulation of the
linkage between technical and financial assistance. CHINA
emphasized support similar to that provided under the Montreal
Protocol. The EU, TANZANIA, AUSTRALIA and theUS
preferred broad language with regard to capacity building. The EU
said the proposed text would include any activitiesrequiredin the
national implementation plan. VENEZUELA offered to present a
GRULAC proposal the next day. The group agreed to consider a
compilation text comprised of the EU proposal and aparagraph on
CHM based on the Canadian proposal.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Early inthe day, some del egatesfretted that text on procedure
and criteriafor additional POPswould not makeit to legal drafting
at INC-3 given the apparent deadl ock on theissue. Someforecasted
that thelegal drafting group would finish the week lounging in the
cafe. All such ideas evaporated when the Negotiation Group
discovered away forward. By day’send, the Legal Drafting Group
had received text on procedure and criteria, with prohibition and
restriction measuresfollowing closely onitsheels. Asone aptly put
it, thelegal drafting group now has“itsplatefull.”

THINGSTO LOOK FOR TODAY

Plenary will conveneat 10:00 am to hear reportsfrom the
I mplementation and Negotiation Groups, the LDG and the contact
groups. Following Plenary, the working and contact groups will
reconvene. The Negotiation Group will discussthe EU proposed
article on procedure and criteriaand information exchange. The
I mplementation Group will continue deliberations on draft text for
the article on technical assistance. The LDG will consider criteria
and procedure.



